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Aegis Defence Services Limited

Strategic report
For the year ended 31 January 2017

The directors present the strategic report and financial statements for the year ended 31 January 2017.

Our corporate vision is to be the leading provider of business solutions and security services in the world.
Admired for our entrepreneurial spirit; trusted te overcome today’s complexities.

Cur mission is to protect and support our clients, securing their place in a complex world by consistently
delivering quality services and value, while growing our business profitably.

Review of the business

Revenue increased from £43m in the previous period to £47m mainly as a result of continued growth in
our core markets. The benefits of the restructuring that took place in 2616 flowed through with a
reduction in Administration expenses of £20m in 2017.

As in previous years our markets reflect the changing needs of our customers and the often rapid
developments in operating conditions. Although the political circumstances and the nature of the
operational risks facing our customers continues to evolve, the Board beiieves that our core customers’
strategy of outsourcing the management of operational risk in pursuit of their strategic aims, will
continue, The Board believes that demand for the Company's services will therefore continue across all
the Company's target markets albeit at changing and variable levels of demand and profitability.

The Company continuously monitors operating conditions and revises its operating practices and
procedures in the light of developments as they occur. The Company recognises its responsibilities to
clients, staff and the communities in which it operates and will not engage in circumstances in which it
cannot assure adequate service and protection levels.

The Company continues to invest its operating profits to develop the range and scope of services offered
to the market. This revenue investment encompasses overheads and expansion costs as well as start-up
costs incurred in commencing operations on new projects in new territories, and the support of these
operations whilst they establish themselves.

As noted under the Principal Risks and Uncertainties, the Company is exposed to the impact of changes in
the Sterling/US Dollar exchange rate. The strengthening of the US Doliar resulted in a positive impact on
the Company’s results.
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Aegis Defence Services Limited

Strategic report {continued)
For the year ended 31 January 2017

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Board, through delegation to Oversight Board, has established a risk management framework for
ensuring that the major risks facing the Company are identified, evaluated and actively managed and that
the Company delivers services to the highest standards of quality and professionalism. Risks are reviewed
continuously. It is not possible to mitigate fully all risks to which the Company is exposed but the ability to
manage such risks and advise others on similar risks is considered a key strength of the Company.

The Company operates in extremely hostile environments on a worldwide basis. This gives rise to
exceptional operating risks and the Company therefore adopts extensive and detailed risk mitigation
strategies and tactics that address physical threats to customers and persennel. The Company mitigates
commercial risk through entering into contract forms that recognise the distinctive environments in which
it operates and by arranging appropriate insurance.

In line with its commitment to the ICOC process, and it’s PSC-1 and ISO 18788 accreditations, the
Company continuously reviews and updates its policies and procedures with regards to its support for and
promotion of human rights in the countries in which it operates. In addition to the special risks arising
from the nature of the Company's business, the Board considers that the major risk factors impacting on
the Company's business include:

Concentrated exposure to a limited number of customers and territories
Although the Company's business is dominated by a small number of major customers, operating
principally in the Middle East and near Asia, the Company continues to work to reduce this dominance
and associated risk through diversifying its customer and contract base,

Foreign exchange
The Company invoices its principal customers in US dollars. The majority of its direct costs arising are

denominated in US dollars but a significant proportion of overhead costs are denominated in UK Sterling.
The Company is therefore exposed to the impact of changes in the Sterling/US Dollar exchange rate. The
Company seeks to mitigate this risk by matching currencies of costs and income wherever possible and
taking short term currency hedging positions where these are appropriate. The increased cost exposure
and revenue generation from the US office has diminished this exposure and will continue to do so going
forward.

Ability to attract and retain qualified personnel

The Company’s contracts frequently specify minimum qualifications for personnel engaged on contrads.
This requires the availability of appropriate personnel at acceptable cost. The Company seeks to mitigate
this risk by investing continuously in recruitment initiatives and providing competitive remuneration
packages for personnel.

Loss of reputation

The Group's business is dependent upon being held in high regard by its customers, the communities in
which it operates and its personnel. The Board seeks to protect the Company's reputation by ensuring
that the Company is only associated with activities that are appropriate and legal, by only engaging with
reputable customers and suppliers and by operating only in those conditions where the Company
understands and can contain physical threats, and by rigorous vetting of personnel.

Page 2



Aegis Defence Services Limited

Strategic report {continued)
For the year ended 31 lanuary 2017

Regulation
The Company continues to engage in a range of initiatives to bring greater credibility, oversight and
regulation to the private security sector.

Key performance indicators
It is part of our mission to grow our business profitably. We use turnaover, turnover growth rate and gross
profit percentage to measure our financial performance.

Other non-financial operating metrics are monitored by the Board and by local management in different
parts of the business with an emphasis aon service delivery, personnel welfare, health and safety,

environmental impacts and human rights.

The Board is satisfied, on the basis of customer and staff feedback received, as well as on other non-
financial measures, that the Company is meeting and/or exceeding its goals in these key areas.

On behalf of the board

Sylvia White
Director
16 October 2017
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Aegis Defence Services Limited

Directors' report
For the year ended 31 January 2017

The directors present their annual report and financial statements for the year ended 31 January 2017.
Comparative figures are in respect of the 13 month period ended 31 January 2016.

Principal activities
The principal activities of the company are the identification and mitigation of risk on behalf of governments
and corporates worldwide, geo-political risk analysis, investigation and security consultancy.

Results and dividends
The results for the year are set out on page 8.

Directors

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of signature of the financial statements
were as follows:

The Rt Hon Sir Nicholas Soames MP (Chairman)

Graham Binns CBE DSO MC

Sylvia White

Kevin Torlage (Resigned 24 March 2016)
Oliver Westmacott

Auditors
Saffery Champness LLP have expressed their willingness to remain in office as auditors of the company.

Page 4



Aegis Defence Services Limited

Directors' report (continued}
For the year ended 31 January 2017

Statement of directors' respensibilities
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law
the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. Under company law the directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing these financial
statements, International Accounting Standard 1 requires that directors:

+ properly select and apply accounting policies;

* present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information;

< provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient
to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the
entity's financial position and financial performance; and

* make an assessment of the company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonahle accuracy at any time the financial position
of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Statement of disclosure to auditors
Each director in office at the date of approval of this annual report confirms that:

* so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company's auditors
are unaware, and

* the director has taken all the steps that he / she ought to have taken as a director in order to make
himself / herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company's auditors
are aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the
Comnpanies Act 2006.

On behalf of the board

Sylvia White
Director
16 October 2017
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Aegis Defence Services Limited

Independent auditors' report
To the members of Aegis Defence Services Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Aegis Defence Services Limited for the year ended 31 January
2017 set out on pages 8 to 29. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation
is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the European Unian.

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006. Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement set out on page 5, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the company's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed;
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors; and the overall presentation
of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual
report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any
information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge
acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements;
* give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 January 2017 and of its profit for
the year then ended;
* have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and
* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

* the information given in the Strategic Report and Directors' Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

* the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.
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Aegis Defence Services Limited

Independent auditors' report (continued)
To the members of Aegis Defence Services Limited

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment agbtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic Report or the Directors' Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:

¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for cur audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

* the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

* certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Michael Di Leto (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Saffery Champness LLP 16 October 2017

Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditors 71 Queen Victoria Street
London
EC4v ABE
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Aegis Defence Services Limited

Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 January 2017

Notes
Revenue 4
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Administrative expenses
Operating profit/(loss) 5
Investment revenues
Profit/(loss) before taxation
Income tax (expense)/income 8
Profit/(loss} and total comprehensive income
for the year 21

Year
ended

31 January
2017

£

47,066,044
(33,482,969)

13,583,075
(2,662,741)
10,920,334
297,166
11,217,500

(409,207)

10,808,293

Period
ended

31 January
2016

£

42,883,791
(26,473,121)

16,410,670
(22,488,530}
(6,077,860)
379,938
(5,697,922)

240,348

(5,457,574)

The income statement has been prepared on the basis that all operations are continuing operaticons.
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Aegis Defence Services Limited

Statement of financial position
As at 31 January 2017

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investments

Deferred tax asset

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Current tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Net current assets

Total liabilities

Net assets

Equity

Called up share capital
Capital redemption reserve

Retained earnings

Total equity

Notes

12
10
17

13

14

16

19
20
21

2017

856,027
4,433,427

5,289,454

22,392,353
662,001

2,270,081

25,324,435

30,613,889

24,269,829

1,054,606

24,269,829

6,344,060

112
25
6,343,923

6,344,060

2016

827,490
4,433,427
47,644
5,308,561
78,380
32,371,592
(584,121)
3,625,510
36,659,603

41,968,164

10,728,359
25,931,244
10,728,359
31,239,805
112

25
31,239,668

31,239,805

The financia! statements were approved by the board of directors and authorised for issue on 16 October

2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

Sylvia White
Director

Company Registration No. 04541965




Aegis Defence Services Limited

Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 January 2017

Balance at 1 January 2015

Period ended 31 January 2016:

Loss and total comprehensive income for the
period
Dividends

Balance at 31 January 2016

Year ended 31 January 2017:

Profit and total comprehensive income for the
year

Dividends

Balance at 31 January 2017

Share Capital  Retained Total

capital redemption earnings

reserve

Notes £ £ £ £
112 25 41,585,783 41,585,920
- - {5,457,574} (5,457,574}
9 - - (4,888,541) (4,888,541}
112 25 31,239,668 31,239,805
- - 10,808,293 10,808,293
9 - - (35,704,038)(35,704,038)
112 25 6,343,923 6,344,060
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Aegis Defence Services Limited

Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 January 2017

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 26

Tax (paid)/refunded

Net cash inflow from operating activities
Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities
Cividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

2017
£ £
34,452,052
(9,443)
34,442,609
{391,166)
297,166
(94,000}

(35,704,038)
(35,704,038)
{1,355,429)
3,625,510

2,270,081

2016

3,238,257

7,145

3,245,402

(572,432)

379,938

(192,494}

(4,888,541)

(4,888,541)
(1,835,633}
5,461,143

3,625,510
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Aegis Defence Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 January 2017

11

1.2

13

1.4

Accounting policies

Company information

Aegis Defence Services Limited is a private company limited by shares incorporated in England and
Wales. The registered office is 1 London Bridge, London, SE1 9BG.

Accounting convention

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted for use in the European Union and with those parts of the Companies Act
2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS, (except as otherwise stated).

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. The principal accounting
policies adopted are set out below.

The company has taken advantage of the exemption under section 400 of the Companies Act 2006 not
to prepare consolidated accounts. The financial statements present information about the company as
an individual entity and not about its group. The company is a subsidiary undertaking of GardaWorld
Security Corporation, a company registered in Canada, and is included in the consolidated financial
statements of that company. Copies of the consolidated financial statements are available at 1390
Barre Street, 2nd floor, Montreal, Quebec, H3C 1NA, Canada.

Going concern

The directors have at the time of approving the financial statements, a reasonable expectation that the
company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus
they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Revenue

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of services in
the ordinary course of the company's activity. Revenue is shown net of value added tax, returns,
rebates and discounts. The company recognises revenue when the amount of the revenue can be
reliably measured and when it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the entity.

Where income is invoiced in advance of work being complete, revenue is treated in the first instance as
deferred income and recognised when the services are performed by the company.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost or
valuation, net of depreciation and any impairment losses.

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation. Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to
write off the cost less estimated residual value of each asset over its expected useful life or as follows:

Leasehold improvements over the length of the lease
Equipment 33% straight line
Materiel 33% straight line
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Aegis Defence Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 January 2017

15

1.6

1.7

Accounting policies {continued)

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carrying value of the asset, and is recognised in the income statement.

Non-current investments
Fixed asset investments are stated at cost less provision for diminution in value.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At each reporting end date, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverabie amount of
an individual asset, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use, In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit} is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset {or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating
unit} is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell.
Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that
have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Inventories held for distribution at no or nominal consideration are measured at the lower of
replacement cost and cost, adjusted where applicable for any loss of service potential.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be
incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.
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Aegis Defence Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 January 2017

18

1.9

1.10

Accounting policies (continued)

Fair value measurement

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for all fair value measurements. IFRS 13 does not
change when an entity is required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on how to measure
fair value under IFRS when fair value is required or permitted. IFRS 13 mainly impacts the disclosures of
the Company. It requires specific disclosures about fair value measurements and disclosures of fair
values, some of which replace existing disclosure requirements in other standards.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised in the company's statement of financial position when the company
becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

Financial assets are classified into specified categories. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of recognition.

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, other than those classified as
fair value through profit and loss, which are measured at fair value.

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not
gquoted in an active market are classified as 'loans and receivables'. Loans and receivables are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when
the recognition of interest would be immaterial. The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating the interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the debt instrument to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each reporting
end date.

Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been affected.
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Aegis Defence Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 January 2017

1l.11

1.12

1.13

Accounting policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to another entity.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or other
financial liabilities.

Other financial ligbilities

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction
costs. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with
interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interast method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition,

Derecognition of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are derecognised when, and only when, the company’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled, or they expire,

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs. Dividends payable on equity instruments are recognised as liabilities once they are no longer at
the discretion of the company.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting end date.
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Aegis Defence Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 January 2017

1.14

1.15

1.16

Accounting policies {continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting end date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply inthe
period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the
income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to 'other
comprehensive income’, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in 'other comprehensive
income'. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when the company has a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets and liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to taxes levied
by the same tax authority.

Employee benefits

The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognised as a liability and an expense, unless those
costs are required to be recognised as part of the cost of inventories or non-current assets.

The cost of any unused holiday entitlement is recognised in the pericd in which the employee’s
services are received.

A termination benefit liability is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw
the offer of the terminaticn benefit and when the entity recognises any related restructuring costs.

Retirement benefits

The company operates a defined contribution scheme for the benefit of its employees. Contributions
payable are charged to the profit & loss account in the year they are payable.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessees. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases, less any lease incentives received, are charged to income on a
straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease except where another more systematic basis &
more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the lease asset are
consumed.
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Aegis Defence Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 January 2017

1 Accounting policies {continued)

1.17 Foreign exchange
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterfing at the
rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Transactions in foreigh currencies are recorded at a
monthly rate ruling for the month in which the transaction occurs. All differences are taken to profit
and loss account.

2  Adoption of new and revised standards and changes in accounting policies
Standards which are in issue but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and
Interpretations, which have not yet been applied in these financial statements, were in issue but not
yet effective (and in some cases had not yet been adopted by the EU):

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with Customers including amendments 1 January 2018
to IFRS 15: Effective Date of IFRS 15

Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with Customers 1 January 2018
IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
IFRS 2 (amendments) Classification and Measurement of Share-based 1 January 2018

Payment Transactions

IFRS 4 (amendments) Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 1 January 2018
{nsurance Contracts

IFRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance 1January 2018
Consideration

Amendments to |IAS 40: Transfers of Investment Property 1January 2018
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Aegis Defence Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 January 2017

3

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the company’s accounting policies, the directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The significant judgements, estimates and assumptions made have been described below:

Key estimates — impairment of property, plant and equipment
Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date,
based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical
obsolescence that may change the utility of certain equipment.

Key estimates — receivables

The receivables at the reporting date have been reviewed to determine whether there is any
objective evidence that any of the receivables are impaired. An impairment provision is included for
any receivable where the entire balance is not considered collectible. An impairment provision is
based on the best information at the reporting date.

Key judgements — recognition of deferred tax assets

As describe in the accounting policies, the extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is
based on an assessment of the probability of the company’s future taxable income against which the
deferred tax assets can be utilised.

Revenue

The total turnover of the company has been derived from its principal activity. It is the view of the
directors that disclosure of the different geographical markets in which the group operates would be
seriously prejudicial to the interests of the company.

2017 2015
£ £

Turnover
Security and consultancy services 47,006,044 38,425,784
Management charges - 4,458,007

47,066,044 42,883,791
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Aegis Defence Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements {continued}
For the year ended 31 January 2017

q Revenue (continued)

Other significant revenue
Interest income

5 Operating profit/{loss)

Operating prafit/{loss} for the period is stated after charging/{crediting):
Exchange gains

Fees payable to the company’s auditors for the audit of the company's
financial statements

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables

6  Employees

297,166 379,938
2017 2016

£ £
{2,218,095) (2,023,652)
35,000 35,000
362,629 390,114
254,628 2,511,785

The average monthly number of persons (including directors) employed by the company during the

year was:

Management and administration

Their aggregate remuneration comprised:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs

2017 2016
Number Number
27 70

2017 2016

£ £
1,967,262 11,633,473
207,139 1,231,975
8,694 47,459
2,183,095 12,912,907
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Aegis Defence Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 January 2017

7 Directors' remuneration

Remuneration for qualifying services
Company pension centributions to defined contribution schemes

Remuneration disclosed above include the following amounts paid to the
highest paid director:

Remuneration for qualifying services

8 Income tax expense

Current tax

Current year taxation

Qverseas taxation

Adjustments in respect of prior periods
Group relief payment

Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences

Total tax charge

409,207

2017 2016
£ £

569,530 3,558,441

- 2,586

569,530 3,561,027
259,625 1,634,403
2017 2016

£ £
200,677 (741,340)
282,224 264,230
(121,338) 167,592
- 33,607
361,563 (275,911)
47,644 35,563

(240,348}
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Aegis Defence Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 January 2017

8 Income tax expense {continued)

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit/{loss) per the income statement as follows:

Profit/{loss) before taxation

Expected tax charge based on a corporation tax rate of 20.00%
Expenses not deductible in determining taxable profit
Adjustment in respect of prior years

Double tax relief
Group relief
Overseas taxation
Other tax adjustment

Tax charge for the period

2017 2016

£ £
11,217,500 (5,697,922}
2,243,500 (1,139,584}
11,365 425,753
(121,338) 167,592
(284,716) -
(1,710,256) -
282,224 264,230
(11,572) 41,661

409,207 (240,348)

The company has tax losses of £nil (2016: £264,690) available to carry forward.

9 Dividends

During the year the company declared dividends totalling £34,828,373 {2016: £4,888,541}.

10 Investments

Investments in subsidiaries

The company has not designated any financial assets that are

Non-current
2016 2017 2016
£ £ £

- 4,433,427 4,433,427

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

not classified as held for trading as
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Aegis Defence Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 January 2017

11 Subsidiaries

Name of undertaking Country of
incorporation

Aegis Defense Services LLC USA

GardaWorld Recruitment England and

Limited Wales

Aegis Response Limited England and
Wales

Sigeaus Limited England and
Wales

Aegis Services LLC Saudi Arabia

Ownership
interest (%)

100.00

100.00

100.60

100.00

100.00

Voting power Nature of business
held {%)

100.005ecurity and consulting
services

100.00Recruitment services

100.00Kidnap response consultancy
services

100.00Consultancy and advisory
services

100.00Security and consulting
services
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Aegis Defence Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements {(continued}
For the year ended 31 January 2017

12 Property, plant and equipment

Leasechold Equipment  Materiel
improvements
£ £ £
Cost
At 1 January 2015 595,242 692,798 1,611,522
Additions 71,425 175,181 325,826
Disposals (235,864) (68,158) (33,251)
At 31 January 2016 430,803 799,821 1,904,097
Additions - - 391,166
Disposals - (519,229) (606,008}
At 31 January 2017 430,803 280,592 1,689,255
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 January 2015 299,150 560,251 1,394,989
Charge for the year 76,221 168,262 145,631
Eliminated on disposal (235,364) (68,158) {33,251)
At 31 January 2016 139,507 660,355 1,507,369
Charge for the year 12,292 79,130 271,207
Eliminated on disposal - {519,229} (606,008)
At 31 lanuary 2017 151,799 220,256 1,172,568
Carrying amount
At 31 January 2017 279,004 60,336 516,687
At 31 January 2016 291,296 139,466 396,728
At 31 December 2014 296,092 132,547 216,533
13 Inventories 2017

Work in progress

Total

2,899,562
572,432
(337,273)
3,134,721
391,166
(1,125,237)
2,400,650
2,254,390
390,114
(337,273)
2,307,231
362,629
{1,125,237)

1,544,623

856,027
827,490

645,172
2016

78,380
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Aegis Defence Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 January 2017

14 Trade and other receivables

Current
2017 2016
£ £
Trade receivables 5,842,694 10,939,213
Provision for bad and doubtful debts (254,628}  (2,980,136)

5,588,066 7,959,077

Other receivables 1,090,525 524,068
Amounts due from fellow group undertakings 12,762,329 22,944,558
Prepayments 2,951,433 943,889

22,392,353 32,371,592

Trade receivables disclosed above are classified as loans and receivables and are therefore measured at
amortised cost.

15 Trade receivables - credit risk

Fair value of trade receivables
The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables is approximately equal
to their fair value.

Ageing of past due but not impaired receivables 2017 2016

£ £
30-60 days 1,521,782 3,553,032
> 60 days 1,537,427 1,179,108

3,059,209 4,732,140

Ageing of impaired trade receivables
Impaired trade receivables are all 180+ days past due.
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Aegis Defence Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continuedj
For the year ended 31 January 2017

15

16

Trade receivables - credit risk {continued)

Movement in the allowances for doubtful debts

Balance at 1 February 2016
Additional allowance recognised
Amounts written off as uncollectible

Balance at 31 January 2017

Trade and other payables

Trade payables

Amounts due to fellow group undertakings
Accruals

Social security and other taxation

2017 2016
£ £
2,980,136 468,351

254,628 2,511,785
(2,980,136) -

254,628 2,980,136

Current
2017 2016
£ £

1,861,314 2,284,662
18,054,629 4,768,186
3,168,091 2,964,850
1,185,795 710,661

24,269,829 10,728,359
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Aegis Defence Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements {continued})
For the year ended 31 January 2017

17

18

19

Deferred taxation

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the company and
movements thereon during the current and prior reporting period.

Deferred tax asset at 1 February 2015

Deferred tax movements in prior year
Charge to profit or loss

Deferred tax asset at 1 February 2016

Deferred tax movernents in current year
Charge to profit or loss

Deferred tax asset at 31 January 2017

Retirement benefit schemes

Defined contribution schemes

Decelerated Tax losses Total
capital available
allowances

£ £ f

(83,207) - {83,207)
83,207 {47,644) 35,563

- (47,644)  (47,644)
- 47,644 47,644

The company operates a defined contribution pension scheme for all qualifying employees. The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the company in an independently administered fund.

The total costs charged to income in respect of defined contribution plans is £8,694 (2016 - £47,459}.

Share capital

Ordinary share capital
Issued and fully paid
1,125,000 Ordinary shares of 0.01p each

2017
£

112

2016
£

112
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Aegis Defence Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 January 2017

20 Capital redemption reserve :
2017 2016

£ £
At 1 February 2016 and 31 January 2017 25 25
21 Retained earnings

2017 2016

£ £

At 1 February 2016 31,239,668 41,585,783

Loss for the period 10,808,293 (5,457,574)
Dividends (35,704,038) (4,888,541)

At 31 January 2017 6,343,823 31,239,668

22 Operating lease commitments

Lessee

Amounts recognised in profit or loss as an expense during the period in respect of operating lease
arrangements are as follows:

2017 2016
£ £
Minimum lease payments under operating leases 647,742 1,050,168

At the reporting end date the company had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

2017 2016

£ £

Within one year 762,049 528,989
Between two and five years 3,048,196 3,048,196
In over five years 2,138,182 2,900,231

5,948,427 6,477,416
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Aegis Defence Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 January 2017

23

24

25

Capital risk management
The company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
Related party transactions

Remuneration of key management personnel
The remuneration of the directors, who are key management personnel, is set out below in aggregate
for each of the categories specified in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures.

2017 2016

£ £

Short-term employee benefits 569,530 3,658,441
Post-employment benefits - 2,586

569,530 3,561,027

During the year, the company charged management fees of £nil (2016: £4,458,007) to subsidiary
undertakings.

During the year, the company was charged management fees of £2,312,186 {2016: £909,181) by the
immediate parent undertaking.

At 31 January 2017 the company was owed £1,636,220 (2016: £4,008,251) by subsidiary undertakings
and £794,723(2016: £1,046,084) by fellow group undertakings. As at 31 January 2017, the balance
owed by subsidiary undertakings was impaired by £1,037,971 {2016: £1,446,868).

At 31 January 2017 the company owed £259,638 (2016: £1,331,265} to subsidiary undertakings and
£17,794,990 {2016: £3,436,921) to fellow group undertakings.

At 31 January 2017 the company was owed a loan balance of £20,464,260 (2016: £19,377,089) by a

subsidiary undertaking. During the year, the company charged interest of £297,166 {2016: £375,540) on
the outstanding loan balance.

Controlling party

The immediate parent company is GardaWorld Consulting (UK} Limited, a company registered in the
England and Wales. The ultimate parent company is Garda World Securities Corporation, a company
registered in Canada.

In the opinion of the directors, there is no single ultimate controlling party.
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Aegis Defence Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 January 2017

26 Cash generated from operations

Profit/{loss) for the year after tax

Adjustments for:
Taxation charged/{credited)
Investment income

Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment

Movements in working capital:
Decrease in inventories

Decrease in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations

Page 29

2017
10,808,293

409,207
{297,166}
362,629

78,380
9,979,239
13,111,470

34,452,052

2016

(5,457,574}

(240,348)
(379,938)
390,114

17,111
3,156,706

5,752,186

3,238,257
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April 12, 2017

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholder of
Garda World Security Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Garda World Security
Corporation, which comprise the consclidated statements of financial position as at January
31, 2017 and 2016 and the consolidated statements of income (loss}, comprehensive income
(loss), changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes, which
comprise a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to frand or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial staterments in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

' PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP/s.r.L/s.encr.l
1250 René-Lévesgue Boulevard West, Suite 2500, Montréal, Quebec, Canada H3B 4Y1
T: +1 514 205 5000, F: +1 514 876 1502

“PwC” refers 10 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP/s.rl/s.e.n.c.r.l., an Ontano limited liabilty partnership.
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pwc

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Garda World Security Corporation as at January 31, 2017 and 2016
and their financial performance and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards.

%W@u}m L2°

' CPA auditor, CA, public accountancy permit No. A110416



Garda World Security Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
As at January 31, 2017 and 2016

(in thousands of Canadian doliars)

2017 2016
$ $
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents {note 5) 69,304 67,563
Accounts receivable (note 6) 301,459 317,052
Revenue to be bifled 101,102 94,414
Inventories {note 7) 21,742 17,831
Prepazid expenses 24,562 35,097
518,169 531,957
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment {note 8) 278,080 304,774
Goodwill (note 9} 608,369 618,893
Intangible assets (note 9} 155,093 169,186
Other assets (note 10) 21,253 29,681
Derivative financial instruments (note 21) - 45,184
Deferred income tax assets (note 20) 306,989 282,191
1,370,794 1,453 909
Total assets 1,888,963 1,985,866
LIABILITIES AND DEFICIENCY
Current liabilities
Bank indebtedness 5212 5,593
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 11) 341,881 343,382
Current portion of long-term debt (note 12) 48,789 59,513
Current portion of provisions and other liabilities (note 13) 12,391 49,343
{ncome taxes payable 18,441 8017
426,714 466,848
Non-current liabilities
Long-term debt (note 12) 1,809,448 1,802,014
Derivative financial instruments (note 21} 15,894 15,741
Provisions and other non-current liabilities (note 13} 25,544 37,606
1,850,886 1,955,361
Total liabilities 2 277,600 2,422,209
Deficiency
Share capital (note 14) 1 1
Contributed surplus 7,073 -
Accumulated other comprehensive income 32,308 85,505
Deficit {420,382) (521,849)
Total deficiency attributable to shareholder (390.000) (436,343)
Non-Controlling interest 1,363 -
Total Deficiency {388.,637) (436,343)
Total liabilities and deficiency 1,888,963 1,885,866
Approved by the Board of Directors
Jean-Lue Landry (signed) Director Francois Plamondon (signed) Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated financial statements.



Garda World Security Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Income (loss) and Comprehensive Income (loss)

For the years ended January 31, 2017 and 2016

(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

2017 2016
$ $
Revenues 2,474,254 2,135,563
Operating costs (note 17) 2,002,989 1,785,711
Seiling and administrative expenses {note 17) 381,909 378,100
Changes in fair value of contingent consideration (note 13) {51,525) -
Unrealized exchange loss (gain) on translation of long-term debt {note 12(e}} {96,584) 119,427
Unrealized loss {(gain) on derivative instruments (note 21) 24,925 (34.944)
Income (loss} before finance costs and income taxes 212,540 {82,731)
Finance costs (note 16) 138,125 127,150
Income (loss) before income taxes 74,415 {209,881)
Provision for (recovery of) income taxes {note 20}
Current 19,262 7,025
Deferred (37,461) {74,117}
(18,199) (67,092)
Net Income (loss) for the year 92,614 (142,789)
Net Income (loss) attributable to
Shareholders 92,594 (142,789)
Non-Controlling Interests 20 -
Net Income (loss) for the year 92,614 (142,789)
Other comprehensive income (loss)
iterns that may be subsequently reclassified to the consglidated statement of
income (loss)
Translation of long-term debts designaled as net investment hedges (note 12(e)) 37,275 (48,387)
Cumulative translation adjustment (93,612} 89,057
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivative instruments 3,910 (75)
Itemn that will not be reclassified to the consolidated statement of income (loss}
Remeasurement of defined benefit pension obligation, net of income tax of $167
{2015 — expense of $26} (note 19) (770} (1,823}
(53,197) 38,772
Comprehensive income (loss) for the year 39,417 {104,017)
Comprehensive income {loss} attributable to
Shareholders 39,397 (104,017)
Non-Controlling Interests 20 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated financial statements,



Garda World Security Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
For the years ended January 31, 2017 and 2016

{in thousands of Canadian dollars)

Equlty

attributabls; to
Share Contributed Comprehensive Retained non-controlling Total
capital surplus income earnings interest deficiency
$ $ $ $ $ 5
Balance — February 1, 2015 1 - 48,733 {379,060) - (332,326)
Net loss for the year R - - {142,789} - {142,789)
Comprehensive income for the year ; N 38772 . B 38,772
Balance ~ January 31, 2016 1 - 85,505 (521,849) - (436,343)
Balance — February 1, 2016 1 - 85,505 (521,849) - (436,343)
Net income for the year - - - 92,594 20 92,614
Comprehensive income for the year - - (53,197} - - (53,197}
Dividends paid - - - (127) - (127)
Stock-based compensation - 7,073 - - - 7.073
Business acguisition (Note 18) - - - - 1,343 1,343
Balance ~ January 31, 2017 1 7,073 32,308  (429382) 1,363 (388,637)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated financial statements.



Garda World Security Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended January 31, 2017 and 2016

(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

2017 2016
$ $
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income {loss) for the year 92,614 (142,789)
Adjustments for
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 15) 89,995 91,134
Amortization of intangible assets (note 15) 27,414 29,358
Deferred income taxes (note 20} (37.461) (74,117)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment {note 8) 401 (166)
Fair value of contingent consideration (note 13) (51,525) -
Unrealized exchange loss (gain) on translation of long-term debt {(note 12(e)) (96,584) 119,427
Unrealized loss {gain) on derivative instruments (note 21) 24 925 (34,944)
Stock-based compensation 7,073 -
Finance costs (note 16) 138,125 127,150
Defined benefit pension expense (note 19) 1,281 63
196,258 115,116
Changes in non-cash working capital
Accounts receivable 12,369 53,589
Revenue to be billed (14,498} (31,965}
Inventories (2,528) (878}
Prepaid expenses 9,513 7.183
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities, provisions and other liabilities (1,501) (37,407)
Income taxes payable 10,538 1,213
Net cash generated from operating activities 210,151 106,851
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Changes in bank indebtedness 19 (86)
Increase in long-term debt, excluding revolving facilities 174,525 250,598
Repayment of long-term debt, excluding revolving facilities (46,171) {34,762)
Interest paid on long-term debt {116,136) {93,484)
Settlement of derivative instrument (note 21) 26,972 -
Changes in revolving facilities (144,020) 12,521
Increase in deferred financing costs (6,855) (8,082)
Dividends paid (127) -
Other {(10,450) (6,733)
Net cash generated from (used in) financing activities (122,243) 119,972
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant and equipment (note 8) (46,533) {49,334}
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment (note 8) 785 11,346
Business acquisitions net of cash and bank indebtedness (note 18} (17.262) (152,662)
Additions to intangible assets (note 9) {9,705} (7,602)
Net cash used in investing activities (72.715) (198,252)
Foreign currency translation on cash and cash equivalents (13,452) (3,613)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents during the year 1,741 24,958
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year (note 5) 87,563 42 605
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year (note 5} 69,304 67,563
Cash paid for income tax 7,121 5,778

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated financial statements,



Garda World Security Corporation

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
January 31, 2017 and 2016

1 General information
Garda World Security Corperation (Parent Company} and its subsidiaries (referred to collectively as “the
Corporation”) provide security services in Canada, the United States and the Middle East. Its activities are carried
out through two (2) main segments: Protective Services and Cash Services.
The Parent Company is incorporated and domiciled in Canada.
The address of the Corporation’s registered office is:
1390 Barré Street
Montréal, Quebec, Canada
H3C 1N4

The Corporation’s main subsidiaries as at January 31, 2017 were as follows:

Voting rights held Location

Garda Security Group Inc. 100% Canada

Garda Canada Security Corporation 100% Canada

Garda World Cash Services Canada Corporation 100% Canada

Garda Security Screening Inc. 100% Canada

ATI Systems International Inc. 100% USA

GW Consulting Middie East Limited 100% United Arab Emirates
Aegis Defence Services Limited 100% United Kingdom
Aegis Defence Services LLC 100% USA

Kenya Kazi Services Limited 100% Kenya

2 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“l1ASB”) and the Chartered
Professional Accountants of Canada Handbook Part 1.
These consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors for issue on April 12, 2017.
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
acccunting estimates, It also requires management to exercise jts judgment in the process of choosing and

applying the Corporation’s accounting policies.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.
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Garda World Security Corporation

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
January 31, 2017 and 2016

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated finaneial
statements is described below, and these policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the
revaluation of certain financial liabilities to fair value, including a portion of long-term consideration payable.

Consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Corporation and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. All intercompany transaction balances and unrealized gains and lesses from intercompany
transactions are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling Interest

The non-controlling interest represent the interest held by third parties in the Corporation’s subsidiaries. The
net assets of the subsidiary attributable to non-controlling interest are reported as a component of equity. Their
share in net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) is recognized directly in equity. Any change in the
Corporation’s interest in a subsidiary that does not result in an acquisition or a loss of control is accounted for
as a capital transaction.

Business combination

The Corporation applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations, The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair value of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Corporation. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Corporation is recognized at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset or
liability is recognized in accordance with International Accounting Standard (“IAS”) 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, in the consolidated statement of income (loss).

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

(2)



Garda World Security Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
January 31, 2017 and 2016

Revenue recognition

Revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which the services are rendered when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured and it is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the entity.
Revenue to be billed represents services rendered but not yet billed.

Insurance provision

Certain US subsidiaries maintain high retention for risks related to vehicles, worker's eompensation and
general liabilities. These US subsidiaries maintain a non-cash insurance provision to cover the estimated
retained liability. The non-cash insurance provision is determined by management and is based on claims filed
and an estimate of claims incurred but not yet reported. Management considers a number of factors when
making these determinations. The US subsidiaries maintain third party stop-loss insurance policies to cover
certain liability costs in excess of predetermined retained amounts.

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

[tems inciuded in the financial statements of each of the Corporation’s subsidiaries are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”™). The
functional currency of the Parent Company and the presentation currency of the Corporation, that is the
currency in which the consolidated financial statements are presented, is the Canadian dollar. All financial
information has been rounded to the nearest thousand except the information on number of options and
shares.

The financial statements of subsidiaries that have a functional currency different from that of the Parent
Company (“foreign operations”) are translated into Canadian dollars as follows: assets and liabilities at the
closing rate at the date of the consolidated statement of financial position, and income and expenses at the
average rate of the period (as this is considered a reasonable approximation to actual rates). All resulting
changes are recognized in other comprehensive income {loss) as cumulative translation adjustment.

When the Parent Company disposes of its entire interest in a foreign operation, or loses control, joint control or
significant influence over a foreign operation, the foreign currency gains or losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income (loss) related to the foreign operations are recognized in the consolidated statement of
income (loss). If the Parent Company disposes of part of an interest in a foreign operaticn which remains a
subsidiary, a proportionate amount of foreign currency gains or losses related to the subsidiary that are
accumulated in other comprehensive income (loss) are reallocated between controlling and non-controlling
interests.

Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the entity in which the transaction

oceurs using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Generally, foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from the translation at year-end
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exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than an entity’s functional
currency are recoghized in the consolidated statement of income (loss).

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and deposits from customers.
Borrowing Costs

The Corporation capitalizes borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying
assets during their active construction. Other borrowing costs are expensed during the period in which they are
incurred.

Accounts receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts

Trade receivables are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. The Corporation records an
allowance for doubtful acecounts using its best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in its existing
accounts receivable. Account balances are written off against the allowance when the Corporation determines
that it is probable the receivable will not be recovered.

Inventories

Inventories consist primarily of aireraft and vehicle parts. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost is determined according to the specific identification method. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price less applicable selling expenses.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Subsequent costs
are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Corporation and the cost can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of a replaced asset is derecognized when replaced. Repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the consolidated statement of income (loss) during the period in which they
are incurred.

The major categories of property, plant and equipment are depreciated as follows:

Method Rate/Period
Buildings Straight-line 20 and 30 years
Equipment and office furniture Declining balance and straight-line 20% and 4 to 5 years
Computer equipment Declining balance and straight-line 30% and 3 to 5 years
Vehicles Declining balance and straight-line 30% and 4 years
Aircraft and aircraft rotables Straight-line 12 years with 45% residual
Armoured vehicles Straight-line 6, 16 and 12 years
Uniforms Straight-line 2 years
Leasehold improvements Straight-line Lease term
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The Corporation allocates the amount initially recognized in respect of an item of property, plant and equipment
to its significant parts and depreciates separately each such part. Residual values, method of depreciation and
useful lives of the assets are reviewed annually and adjusted if appropriate.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recognized in operating costs in the consolidated statement of income (loss).

Lease classifications

The classification of a lease as an operating lease or a finance lease depends on certain estimates and judgments
to determine whether substantially all the risk and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased asset have been
transfeired from the lessor to the lessee. The Corporation uses its best estimates and judgments, based on
historical experience and the terms of the agreement, when estimating the econamic life and residual value of a
leased asset and determining the implicit interest rate when calculating minimum lease payments. An asset is
recorded together with the related capital lease obligation. The assets under finance leases are amortized over
their estimated useful lives at the same rate as other similar assets,

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the consideration transferred over the fair value of the
Corporation’s share of the identifiable net assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to each cash-generating unit (“CGU”) or
group of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the related business combination. Gains and losses on the
disposal of a CGU or part of a CGU include the carrying amount of goedwill relating to the CGU or part of a CGU
sold.

Identifiable intangible assets

The Corporation’s intangible assets include service contracts and client relationships and software with finite
useful lives. Service contracts and client relationships are recorded at cost and amortized on a straight-line basis
over periods varying from three to twenty years, which represent their estimated useful lives. Software is
amortized on a straight-line basis over periods of between three and five years.

Impairment

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. For the purpose of
measuring recoverable amounts, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflows (CGUs). The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use (being the present value of the expected future cash flows of the relevant asset or CGU, as determined by
management).

Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are reviewed for impairment annually or at any time if

an indicator of impairment exists. Management monitors goodwill for internal purposes based on its CGUs,
which are its operating segments.
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The Corporation evaluates prior impairment losses, other than goodwill impairment, for potential reversals when
events or circumstances warrant such consideration,

Financial instruments: Recognition, derecognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Corporation becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Corporation has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Financial
liabilities are derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

At initial recognition, the Corporation classifies its financial instruments in the following categories depending on
the purpose for which the instruments are acquired:

¢ Loans and receivables: Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed and
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. The Corporation’s loans and
receivables comprise cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, revenue to be billed and notes
receivable. Except for the notes receivable, which are classified as long-term, loans and receivables are
included in current assets due to their short-term nature. Loans and receivables are initially recognized
at the amount expected to be received less, when material, a discount to reduce the loans and
receivables to fair value. Subsequently, loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method less a provision for impairment.

¢ Financial liabilities at amortized cost: Financial liabilities at amortized cost consist of bank
indebtedness, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, long-term debt and consideration payable.
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are initially recognized at the amount required to be paid less,
when material, a discount to reduce the payables to fair value, Subsequently, acecounts payable and
accrued liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Bank
indebtedness and long-term debt are recognized initially at fair value, net of any transaction costs
incurred, and subseguently at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within 12 months. Otherwise, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

+  Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: A financial asset or financial
liahility is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in
the short term. Financial instruments in this category are recognized initially and subsequently at fair
value.
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Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fajr value, The method of recognizing the resulting gain or loss depends on
whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. If
the derivative is not designated as a hedging instrument, the gain or loss on remeasurment is recognized in the
consolidated statement of income (less).

The Corporation designates certain derivatives as either:
a)  hedges of a particular risk associated with a recognized asset or liability (cash flow hedge); or

b)  hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation (net investment hedge).

The Corporation documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging instruments
and hedged items, as well as its risk management ohjectives and strategy for undertaking various hedging
transactions. The Corporation also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis,
of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair
values or cash flows of hedged items.

a) Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income (loss). The gain or loss
relating to the ineffective portion is recognized immediately int the consolidated statement of income (loss).

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time rernains in equity and is recognized
when the hedged item is ultimately recognized in the consolidated statement of income (loss).

b) Netinvestment hedge

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain
or loss on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income (loss). The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion
is recognized in the consalidated statement of income {lass). Gains and losses accumulated in equity are
included in the consolidated statement of income (loss) when the foreign operation is partially disposed of
or sold.
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Employee benefits
a) Defined contribution pension plans

The Corporation has established defined contribution pension plans for certain of its unionized and non-
unionized employees in Canada and the United States. In addition, the Corporation also contributes to a
registered retirement savings plan for various employees. The pension expense for these plans is
represented by the Corporation contribution.

b) Defined benefit pension plans

The liability recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit
pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less
the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit cbligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries
using the projected unit credit method, The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined
by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that
are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity
approximating the terms of the related pension obligation.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged or eredited to equity in other comprehensive income (loss) in the period in which they arise. Past
service costs are recognized immediately in the consclidated statement of income (loss).

Provisions and other non-current liabilities

Provisions are recognized in other non-current liabilities when the Corporation has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are measured at
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting
period, and are discounted to present value when the effect is material. The Corporation performs evaluations
to identify onerous contracts and, where applicable, records provisions for such contracts.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in the consolidated statement of
income (loss) except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case the income
tax is also recognized directly in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period and any adjustment te tax payable in respect of
previous years.

In general, deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets

and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax is
determined on a non-discounted basis using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
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at the consolidated statement of financial position date and are expected to apply when the deferred tax assets
or liabilities are settled. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that the assets can be
recovered.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except, in the case of subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by
the Corporation and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are presented as non-current.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Share capital

Common shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of the shares are
recognized as a deduction from equity.

Stock-based Compensation

Stock options granted to senior management are measured at fair value. This fair value is then recognized in net
income (loss) over the vesting period based on service conditions for senior management with an offsetting
increase in Contributed surplus. Fair value is determined using a Monte Carlo option pricing model, which was
designed to estimate fair value of exchange-traded options that have restrictions as to vesting. Any
consideration paid by employees on the exercise of stock options is credited to Share capital. Expenses related
to stock options are recorded under selling and administrative expenses and the cumulative value of
unexercised options outstanding is included in Contributed surplus.

New accounting standards adopted during the year

The Corporation adopted these new standards, and this change had no material impact on the Corporation'’s
consolidated financial statements,

» IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, has been amended to clarify that the additional disclosure
required by the amendments to IFRS 7, Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities,
is nat specifically required for interim periods, utless required by IAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting. The
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016,

+ IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, has been amended to clarify guidance on materiality and

aggregation, the presentation of subtotals, the structure of financial statements and the disclosure of
accounting policies. The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016.
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New accounting standards not yet adopted

The following revised standards and amendments are effective for annual periods beginning after January 1,
2017. The Corporation has not yet assessed the impact of these standards and amendments or determined
whether it will early adopt them.

. IFRS 16, “Leases” (“IFRS 16”). IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases for hoth parties to a contract, i.e. the customer (lessee} and the
supplier (lessor). IFRS 16 will supersede IAS 17, “Leases”, and related Interpretations. IFRS 16 will be
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019, with earlier adoption permitted if
IFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”, is also applied.

s IAS 7, On February 2, 2016, the IASB issued narrow-scope amendments to IAS 7, Statement of Cash
Flows, to require companies to provide information on changes in their financing liabilities, The
changes apply to fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2017 with earlier adoption permitted.

+ In May 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. IFRS 15 replaces all
previous revenue recognition standards, including IAS 18, Revenue. The standards sets out the
requirements for recognizing revenue. Specifically, the new standard introduces a comprehensive
framework with the general principle being that an entity recognize revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods and services in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The new standard is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2018,

s The final version of IFRS ¢ was issued in July 2014 and addresses classification and measurement of
financial assets. It replaces the multiple category and measurement models for debt instruments in IAS
39 with a new mixed measurement model having only two categories: amortized cost and fair value
through profit or loss. IFRS g also replaces the models for measuring equity instruments. Such
instruments are either recognized at fair value through profit or loss or at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Where equity instruments are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income, dividends are recognized in profit or loss to the extent that they do not clearly
represent a return of investment; however, other gains and losses (including impairments) associated
with such instruments remain in accumulated other comprehensive income indefinitely.

¢  Requirements for financial liabilities were added to IFRS g in October 2010, and they largely carried
forward existing requirements in IAS 39, except that fair value changes due to credit risk for liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss are generally recorded in other comprehensive income.
IFRS ¢ also introduced a new impairment model for financial assets based on expected credit loss. The
new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018.

(10)



Garda World Security Corporation

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
January 31, 2017 and 2016

4 Critical acconnting estimates and judgments

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Management estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates, judgments and assumptions. The carrying amounts of assets, liabilities, accruals,
provisions, contingent liabilities and other financial obligations as well as the determination of fair values and
reported income and expense in these consolidated financial statements depend on the use of estimates and
judgments. IFRS also requires management to exercise judgment in the process of applying the Corporation's
accounting policies. These estimates and judgments are based on the circumstances and estimates at the date of
the consolidated financial statements and affect the reported amounts of income and expenses during the
reporting pericd. Given the uncertainty regarding the determination of these factors, actual results may differ
from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected. Significant items impacted by such estimates and judgments are outlined below.

Estimated useful lives

Management estimates the useful lives of property, plant and equipment based on the period during which the
assets are expected to be available for use, The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for depreciation of
property, plant and equipment for any period are affected by these estimated useful lives. The estimates are
reviewed at least annually and are updated if expectations change as a result of physical wear and tear, technical
or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits to use. Changes in these factors may cause significant
changes in the estimated useful lives of the Corporation’s property, plant and equipment in the future.

Valuation of identifiable assets and liabilities in connection with the acquisition of a business

The valuation of identifiable assets and labilities in connection with the acquisition of a business involves items
in the acquired company’s statement of financial position, as well as items that have not been recognized in the
acquired company’s statement of financial position such as customer relationships that should be valued at fair
value, In normal circumstances, as quoted market prices are not aiways available for the assets and liabilities
that are to be valued, different valuation methods have to be used. These valuation methods are based on a
number of assumptions, Other items that can be difficult to both identify and value are contingent liabilities
that could have arisen in the acquired company such as litigation-related items and contingent consideration.
All statement of financial position items acquired in a business combination are thus subject ta estimates and
judgments. Please refer to note 18 for details regarding the estimates made for the most recent business
acquisitions,

Goodwill

The values associated with goodwill involve significant estimates and assumptions, including those with respect
te future cash inflows and outflows, discounts rates and lives of assets. These significant estimates and
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judgments require considerable judgment which could affect the Corporation’s future results if the current
estimates of future performance and fair values change.

The Corporation assesses impairment by comparing the recoverable amount of goodwill with its carrying value,
The determination of the recoverable amount involves significant management judgment,

On an annual basis, a goodwill impairment test is performed on January 31. This test is carried out more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that goodwill might be impaired, in accordance with
the methodology stated in note 9.

Valuation of accounts receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts

Accounts receivable, which amount to $301,459 (2016 — $317,052), are one of the most significant current
items included in the consolidated statement of financial position. Accounts receivable are accounted at initial
fair value after allowance for doubtful accounts. The allowance for doubtful accounts, which amounts to $6,68¢
(2016 — $11,417), is thus subject to critical estimates and judgments. Further information regarding the credit
risk in accounts receivable is provided in notes 6 and 21,

Critical accounting judgments and assumptions

The Corporation makes judgments and assumptions concerning the future. The judgments and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.,

Income taxes

The Corporation is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Corporation recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such determination is made. The Corporation
determined that the deferred tax assets will be recoverable. Please refer to note 20 for details regarding the
deferred tax asset valuation.

Insurance provision

Certain US subsidiaries maintain high retention for risks related to vehicles, worker’s compensation and
general liabilities. The operational risks can result in the need to recognize a provision for damages resulting
from property claims, personal injuries as well as worker’s compensation claims related to the US subsidiaries’
employees. Claims reserves are calculated based on a combination of cases reported and cases incurred but not
reported. Every month, the Corporation performs calculations to assess the adequacy of the reserves based on
open claims and historical data for incurred but unreported claims. The Corporation’s calculations are based on
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several assumptions. Accordingly, the current and non-current provisions on the consolidated statement of
financial position related to insurance provision, which amount to $18,941 (2016 — $20,046) and are included
in provisions and other non-current liabilities (note 13), are subject to critical judgments and assumptions.

Defined benefit pension plan obligation

The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an
actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for
pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of
pension obligations.

The Corporation determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that
should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to
settle the pension obligations. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the group considers the interest
rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid
and that have terms te maturity approximating the terms of the related pension obligation.

Other assumptions for pension obligations are based in part on current market conditions. Additional
information is disclosed in note 19.
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5 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are detailed as follows:

2017 2016

$ $

Cash on hand 39,344 41,137
Deposits from customers 21,816 17,626
Restricted cash 8,144 8,800
69,304 67,563

As at January 31, 2017, the Corporation has restricted cash of $8,144 (2016 — 8,800) that was deposited as
collateral. This cash is not available for general operating purposes.

6 Accounts receivable

2017 2016

$ $

Trade receivables 269,126 296,504
Allowance for doubtful accounts (6,689) (11,417)
Other receivables 39,022 31,965
301,459 317,052

The aging of trade receivables and the allowance for doubtful accounts are as follows:

2017 2016

$ $

Not past due 225,577 242,700
Past due 0-30 days 19,861 20,365
Past due 31-60 days 6,300 14,453
Past due 61-120 days 4,645 5,588
More than 120 days 12,743 13,398
269,126 296,504

Allowance for doubtful accounts (6,689) (11,417)
262,437 285,087
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6 Accounts receivable (continued)

The change in the allowance for doubtful accounts in respect of trade receivables during the vear is as follows:

2017 2016

$ $

Opening balance 11,417 7,898
Change in provision 2,570 6,085
Amounts written off (6,484) (2,794)
Effect of exchange rate (814) 428
Ending balance 6,689 11,417

Credit risk on accounts receivable

There is a limited concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables, as the Corporation’s customers
are large in number and dispersed across different market segments. The Corporation’s subsidiaries grant
credit to their customers in the ordinary course of business and assess the creditworthiness of potential
customers.

Credit terms vary across the Corporation and can range from 30 to 9o days to reflect the different risks within
each country in which the Corporation operates. There is no corporate-wide rate of provision, and provision is

made for accounts receivable that are past due according to local conditions and past default experience.

Management believes that the fair value of accounts receivable, being the present value of deferred cash flows,
approximates their book value.

= Inventories

2017 2016

$ $

Aircraft parts 8,678 9,151
Vehicle parts 5,366 6,349
Other 7,798 2,331
21,742 17,831

For the year ended January 31, 2017, the cost of inventories recognized as an expense and included in operating
costs amounted to $28,546 (2016 — $30,030).
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8 Property, plant and equipment

Computer Equipment

Alrcraft
and

equipmen and office aircraft Armoured Leasehold
Buildings t  furniture Vehicles rotables  vehicles Uniforms improvements Total
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

For the year ended

January 31, 2016
Net value - beginning 15,146 3,080 36,345 23,634 113,441 58,586 6,491 34,969 292,692
Additions - 2,511 652 6.222 9,289 25,694 11,778 15,473 71,619
Proceeds from disposals (8,840) (101) (56) {1.691) (643) {10) - (5) {11,346)
Depreciation (572) (1.717) (13,175) {13,119) (18,875) (28,051) (5.807) (9,818) (91,134}
Business acquisitions

{note 18} - 395 2,186 13,927 - 1,200 - 1,237 18,945
Gain (loss) on disposals 25 47 1M1 (118} 245 {79) (1) (64) 166
Effect of exchange rate 1,104 188 2,531 1,146 11,358 3,682 495 3,328 23,832
Net value - end 6,863 4,403 28,594 30,001 114,815 62,022 12,956 45,120 304,774
As at January 31, 2016
Cost 8,197 26,396 104,018 68,284 254,978 260,281 30,809 118,056 872,019
Accumulated

depreciation {1,334) (21,993) (75,424} {38.283) {140,163) {198,259)  (17,853) {73,9386) (567.245)
Net value 6,863 4,403 28,594 30,001 114,815 62,022 12,956 45,120 304,774
For the year ended

January 31, 2017
Net value — beginning 6,863 4,403 28,594 30,001 114,815 62,022 12,956 45,120 304,774
Additions - 1,441 5,927 4,921 10,501 35,443 6,173 8212 72,618
Proceeds from disposals (558) (44) (30) (78) - (64) {11) - (785)
Depreciation (312) {1,768) {10,613) (13,257) (16,637) {29,238) (8,344) {9,826) (89,995)
Business acquisitions

(note 18) 2,037 575 3972 6,577 - - - - 13,181
Gain (loss) on disposals (48) (5) {89) 33 - (183) - (108) (401)
Effect of exchange rate {703) (215) (1,882) (2.687) {8,497} (2,843) {403) (3,052) (20,282)
Net value — end 7,278 4,387 25,879 25,510 100,182 65,137 10,371 40,346 279,090
As at January 31, 2017
Cost 8,834 27,105 106,295 70,482 246,361 276,329 24,454 118,198 878,058
Accumulated

depreciation (1.556) (22,718) (80,4186) (44,972 (146,179)  {211,192) (14,083} (77.852) (598,968)
Net value 7.278 4,387 25,879 25,510 100,182 65,137 10,371 40,346 279,090

As at January 31, 2017, the cost and accumulated depreciation for computer equipment, vehicles, armoured
vehicles and aireraft held under finance leases amounted to $195,331 and $129,484 respectively (2016 - $183,968

and $116,385).

During the year, the Corporation acquired property, plant and equipment under finance leases and conditional

sales contracts amounting to $26,085 (2016 — $22,285).
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9 Goodwill and intangible assets

The changes in the carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets are as follows:

Service contracts Total
and client intangible

Software relationships assets Goodwill
$ $ $ $

For the year ended January 31, 2016
Net value - beginning 16,526 127,724 144,250 466,990
Business acquisitions {(note 18) - 36,178 36,178 112,204
Additions 4,881 2,721 7,602 -
Amortizaticn of intangible assets (8,381) (20,997) {29,358) -
Effect of exchange rate 1,536 8,878 10,514 39,699
Net value — end 14,582 154,604 169,186 618,883

As at January 31, 2016

Cost 48,422 238,373 286,795 618,893
Accumulated amortization {33,840) {83,769) (117,609) -
Net value 14,582 154,604 169,186 618,893

For the year ended January 31, 2017
Net value — beginning 14,582 154,604 169,186 618,893
Business acquisitions (note 18) - 12,950 12,950 24 537
Additions 5,798 3,907 9,705 -
Amortization of intangible assets {5,050) (22,384} (27,414) -
Effect of exchange rate (1,074} (8,260) _{9,334) __(35,061)
Net value — end 14,256 140,837 155,093 508,369

As at January 31, 2017

Cost 51,572 241,788 293,360 608,365
Accumulated amortization (37,316} (100,951) {138,267} -
Net value 14,256 140,837 155,093 608,369

Intangible assets with definite useful lives

Additions to intangible assets during the year included $9,705 acquired from a third party (2016 — $7,458). No

intangible assets were internally developed during the year (2016 — $144).
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Goodwill impairment test

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Corporation’s cash generating units
{“CGUs"), which represent the lowest level within the Corporation at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. The aggregate carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each CGU is as follows:

2017 2016
$ $

Operating segments
Cash Logistics — Canada 62,370 62,370
Cash Logistics — USA 273,563 295,607
International Protective Service 159,162 147,632
Airport pre-board security screening — Canada 2,717 2717
Security guard services — Canada 110,567 110,587
608,369 618,893

The Corporation performed its goodwill impairment test as at January 31. The methodology is based on
discounted future cash flows. The recoverable amount of each CGU was estimated based on its fair value less
cost of disposal, wherein the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using after-tax
discounted rates ranging between 11.0% and 12.5% (2016 - 11.0% and 12.5%).

The discounted rates were estimated based on past experience and industry-average weighted average cost of
capital. First-year cash flows were projected based on past experience, actual operating results and reflecting
current economic conditions. For a further nine-year period, cash flows were extrapolated using an average
growth rate of between 2% and 3.5% in revenues, and margins were adjusted where deemed appropriate. The
terminal value is based on an exit multiple ranging from 8 to 12 times the recurring operating profit.

The result of the test determined that no impairment loss was required in any of its CGUs, as the recoverable
amount for these CGUs was higher than their respective carrying amount.

A 1% increase in the discount rate or a 1% decrease in cash flows would not give rise to an impairment,

10 Other assets

2017 2016

$ $

Notes receivable 16,244 22,298
Other 2,521 5,651
Employee henefit assets (note 19) 2,488 1,732
21,253 29,681
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11 Accounts payable and acerued liabilities

Trade payables

Labour and related liabilities
Sales taxes payable
Provision for interest payable
Accrued liabilities

Deferred income

2017 2016

$ $
76,252 86,456
128,918 111,872
9,014 18,719
22,231 22,627
103,150 87,815
2,316 15,893
341,881 343,382

The Corporation’s exposure to currency risk and liquidity risk related to accounts payable and accrued liabilities

is disclosed in note 21,
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12 Long-term debt 2017

Authorized revolving facilities of US$230,000, bearing interest at

Canadian prime rate or US Bank Rates plus 2.25%; LIBOR or at

Banker's Acceptance plus 3.25% with a reduction in refation to

the leverage ratio, repayable in full at maturity in November

2018 (note 12{f} and {(g)) 6,841
Authorized revolving facilities of US$30,000, could be increased to a

maximum of US$45,000 (the increase is subject to approval},

bearing interest at Daily One Mcnth LIBOR rate plus 2.25%,

repayable in full at maturity in June 2017 8,479
Term loan of US$737,347, bearing interest at LIBOR (with a

minimum at 1%) plus 3% with a reduction in relation to the

leverage ratio, payable in quarterly instalments of US$1,896,

the remaining balance is repayable in full at maturity in

November 2020 (note 12(a), (b), {c) and (d)) 930,749
Senior note of US$440,000, bearing interest at a fixed rate of 7.25%,

payable in full at maturity in November 2021 569,222
Term loan of CA$130,613, bearing interest at banker’'s acceptance

(with a minimum at 1%} plus 3.75% with a reduction in relation

to the leverage ratio, payable in quarterly instalments of

CA$337, the remaining balance is repayable in full at maturity

in November 2020 (note 12{(c) and (d}} 128,865
Delayed draw facility of US$106,425, bearing interest at LIBOR

(with @ minimum at 1%) plus 3% with a reduction in relation to

the leverage ratio, payable in quarterly instalments of US$275,

the remaining balance is repayable in full at maturity in

November 2020 {note 12(c) and (d)) 136,172
Finance lease obligations, collateralized by certain property, plant

and equipment, at interest rates varying between 3.90% and

11.61% with an average rate of 5.28% payable in monthly

instalments of $1,325, principal and interest, maturing on

various dates through March 2023 52,830
Conditional sales contracts, repaid in July 2016 -
Balances of purchase price payable, bearing no interest, payable in

annual instalments, maturing through various dates through

December 2019 3,518
Medium Term Notes of Kenyan Shilling KES$352,629, and US$410,

bearing a fixed average interest rate of 14.20%. Interest is paid

semi-annually. Payable in full at maturity in December 2021 5,503
Commercial Paper Program (note 12(i)) 8,874
Other financial indebtedness (note 12()) 7,084

2016

143,813

23,092

844 346
614,901

130,127

148,680

51,676
279

4,133

1,858,237
Less: Current portion 48,788

1,861,527
59,513

1,809,448

1,902,014

a) On May 6, 2015, the Corporation completed the financing of an additional US$125 million and an additional

financing of US $75 million on September 15, 2015.
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b) On November 9, 2016, the Corporation completed the financing of an additional US$125 million to its existing

c)

term loan.

The revolving facilities and term loan are secured by a general pledge as well as a movable hypothec on the
universality of present and future assets of the Corporation. As part of this credit agreement, the Corporation is
subject to a total leverage ratio. As at January 31, 2017, the Corporation is in compliance with its covenants,

Standby fees, which vary based on the leverage ratio, apply to the unused portion of the credit facilities.

d) At the end of each fiscal year, the Corporation has to make a prepayment on the outstanding borrowings under

e)

8)

the term loan for an amount based on the first lien senior secured leverage ratio and the excess cash flow, as
foliows:

50% of excess cash flow if the first lien senior secured leverage ratio at such time exceeds 3.25:1;

25% of excess cash flow if the first lien senior secured leverage ratio at such time exceeds 2.75:1 but is not more
than 3.25:1.

The Corporation has designated US$355 million of its US dollar senior note and US term loan as a foreign
exchange hedge of its net investment in its foreign operations. Accordingly, the portion of the gains or losses
arising from the translation of the US dollar-denominated debt that is determined to be an effective hedge is
recoghized in other comprehensive income (loss), counterbalancing gains or losses arising from translation of
the Corporation’s net investment in its foreign operations. Should a portion of the hedging relationship become
ineffective, the ineffective portien would be recorded in the consolidated statement of income (loss), During the
year ended January 31, 2017, a gain of $37,275 (2016 —loss of $48,387) has been recorded in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (ioss) related to the translation of the US doliar senior note and US doiiar
term loan.

During the year ended January 31, 2017, an unrealized exchange gain on translation of long-term debt of
$96,584, (2016 — loss of $119,427) has been recorded related to the foreign exchange variation of the
Corporation’s long-term debt in US dollars not designated as a foreign exchange hedge of its net investment in
its foreign operations.

As at January 31, 2017, letters of credit totalling $60,901 {2016 — $66,715) of which $60,736 (2016 - $64,550)
reduced the available revolving facilities. As a result, $230,697 (2016 — $70,618) was available to be drawn
under the revolving facilities. These letters of credit mainly guarantee worket’s compensation claims to the
insurance company.

The Corporation’s management reviews compliance with the financial covenants on a monthly basis, and its

Board of Directors reviews compliance with the financial covenants on a quarterly basis. As at January 31, 2017,
the Corporation was in compliance with its financial covenants,
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h)

i)

i),

Capital payments on long-term debt and minimum payments on finance lease obligations over the next five
years and thereafter are as follows:

Minimum payments

Capital payments on finance lease

on long-term debt obligations

2018 34,313 16,834
2019 25,568 14,237
2020 14,422 9,948
2021 1,192,057 8217
2022 578,823 7,438
Thereafter - 3,944
1,845,183 60,618

Minimum instalments payable for the subsequent years under finance lease obligations amount to $60,618, of
which $7,788 is interest. The current portion of the finance lease obligations amounts to $14,476.

The Corporation has a KES 1,000,000 Commercial Paper program in place. The Program is unsecured,
unsubordinated debt. Notes are issued at a discount in KES or USD. As of January 31, 2017, KES denominated
Commercial Paper totalled KES 672,581 (CAD $8,423) and USD denominated Commercial Paper totalled
US$423(CAD $551). The Corporations Commercial Papers have maturities ranging from 7-360 days, but
typically 30 days and above with an average interest rate of 12.63%

Other financial indebtedness includes various debts composed of; term loans, asset financing and overdraft

facilities. Interest rates average to 14.19% with debts maturing on various dates through November 2019. These
bank borrowings are secured by Kenya Kazi Limited assets.
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13 Provisions and other non-current liabilities

Deferred Total
rent provisions
for real Long-term and other
Insurance estate’s payable Contingent non-current
provision tenants consideration consideratiog Other liabl‘lltie:
$ $
For the year ended
January 31, 2016
Opening balance 9,268 5,122 4310 - 781 19,481
Additional provisions 43,890 867 - - 547 45,304
Business acquisitions {note 18} - - - 52,090 - 52,000
Used during the year (34,344} (851} (2.000) - (3) (37,198)
Remeasurement obligations 1,516 1,516
Unwind of discount - - 51 - - 51
Effect in exchange rate during
the year 1,232 470 - 3,935 68 5,705
Ending balance 20,046 5,608 2,361 56,025 2,909 86,949
Current provisions 5,939 1,010 1,920 36,450 i4 49,343
Non-current provisions 10,107 4,598 441 19,565 2,895 37,608
20,046 5,608 2,361 56,025 2,909 86,949
For the period ended
January 31, 2017
Opening balance 20,046 5,608 2,361 56,025 2,909 86,949
Additional provisions 31,515 - - - - 31,515
Business acquisitions (note 18) - - - 11.960 11,960
Used during the period (31,634) (820) {2,000) - 3 (34,451)
Change in fair value - - - (51.525) - (51,925)
Remeasurement obligations - - - - 223 223
Unwind of discount - - 22 - - 22
Effect in exchange rate during
the period (986) {409) - (5,184} (179) (6,758)
Ending balance 18,941 4,379 333 11,276 2,956 37,835
Current provisions 11,046 936 383 - 286 12,391
Nen-current provisions 7.895 3.443 - 11,278 2,930 25,544
18,941 4,379 383 11,276 2,956 37,935

a) Insurance provision

Certain US subsidiaries maintain high retention for risks related to vehicles, worker’s compensation and
general liabilities. These US subsidiaries maintain non-cash insurance provision to cover the estimated retained
liability. The non-cash insurance reserve for insurance is determined by management and is based on claims
filed and an estimate of claims incurred but not yet reported. The US subsidiaries maintain third party stop-loss
insurance policies to cover certain liability costs in excess of predetermined retained amounts.
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b) Deferred rent for real estate tenants

The deferred rent represents cash received from lessors for leasehold improvements for real estate tenants,
which is amortized over the terms of the leases,

¢} Contingent consideration
The fair value of the acquisition-related contingent consideration is based on estimated future cash flows and
assessment of the probability of occurrence of potential future events. The fair value of the contingent
consideration as at January 31, 2017 was $ 11,276.
The acquisition-related contingent consideration is remeasured each reporting period, with changes in fair

value recorded in the consolidated statement of income (loss). As at January 31, 2017, the change in fair value
resulted in a gain of $ 51,525 due to earnout target not achieved.

14 Share capital
a) Capital risk management

The Corporation has defined its capital as long-term debt, share capital, contributed surplus and deficit, net of
cash and cash equivalents and bank indebtedness.

The following table summarizes certain information with respect to the Corporation’s capital structure:

2017 2016

$ $

Cash and cash equivalents, net of bank indebtedness (64,092) {61,970)
Long-term debt 1,858,237 1,961,527
1,794,145 1,899,557

Deficiency excluding accumulated other comprehensive income (422,308} (521,848)
1,371,837 1,377,709

The Corporation’s objectives when managing capital are to maintain an optimal capital structure with the use of
external long-term debt to support its growth.

The Corporation normally finances property, plant and equipment additions of armoured vehicles, aircraft and
vehicles through finance leases. All other property, plant and equipment additions are paid cash using operating

cash flows.

Other than the covenants required by its credit facilities and its note agreement, the Corporation is not subject
to any externally imposed capital requirements.
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b} Authorized — in unlimited number, without par value
Unlimited number of cornmon shares, voting and participating

¢) Issued and fully paid

Number of
common Amount
shares $
Balance as at January 31, 2017 and January 31, 2016 379,695,525 1

d) Stock Options

During the year, employees received stock options from shareholders of the Corporation. Stock options granted
totalled 4,905,836 at exercise price of $27.76 per share. The stock options have a life of ten years, The vesting of
the options shall satisfy performance vesting conditions based on achievement of multiple of invested capital
{MOIC) and the internal rate of return (IRR) target.

The fair value of options granted was estimated on the date of the grant using the Monte Carlo option-pricing
model based on the following assumptions:

tssuance of

July 12, 2016

Expected dividend rate Nil
Volatility 25.8%
Expected fife of options 1 to 10 years
Risk-free interest rate 1.00%
Number of options 4,905,836
Fair value of options $1.84
Exercise and Spot price $27.76

During the year, the Corporation recorded to net income a stock-based compensation charge of $7,073
(2016 - nil) for the options granted since July 12, 2016, with an offsetting credit to contributed surplus.
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15 Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — Operating
costs

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — Selling and
administrative expenses

Amortization of intangible assets — Operating costs

16 Finance costs

Interest on long-term debt

Interest on finance lease obligations
Other interest

Amortization of deferred financing costs
Amortization of premiums

Unwind of discount

2017 2016

$ $
76,437 72,300
13,558 18,834
89,995 91,134
27,414 29,358
117,409 120,492
2017 2016

$ $
101,527 94,597
4,338 5.469
9,741 7,633
9,301 7,889
(1,296) (1,296)
14,514 12,858
138,125 127,150
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17

18

Expenses by nature

2017 2016

$ $

Salaries and fringe benefits 1,682,592 1445712
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 89,995 91,134
Amortization of intangible assets 27,414 29,358
Stock-hased compensation 7,073 -
Subcontractors 184,123 132,151
Transportation experses 115,973 117,908
Facility rent and related expenses 80,987 76,609
Cost of inventories recognized as an expense 28 546 30,030
Operating-related costs 162,965 897.318
Administration-related costs 112,367 112,810
Other expenses (gains) {7,137} 781
Total 2,379,540 2,133,811
Operating costs 2,002,989 1,755 711
Selling and administrative expenses 381,909 378,100
Total 2,384,898 2,133,811

Business acquisitions

The Corporation acquired all of the outstanding shares of Kenya Kazi Limited on December 22, 2016 and 80%
of the outstanding shares of Crisis 24 on December 1, 2016. Both entities operate in Protective Services. The
table below presents the preliminary purchase price determination of the acquired businesses.

During 2015, the Corporation acquired the assets of four businesses and shares of two businesses which operate
in Protective Services and Cash Services. Acquired on September 17, 2015, Hestia B.V. (Aegis) is the largest of
the four acquisitions.

These acquisitions are in line with the Corporation’s strategy, which is to establish operations’ platforms and
then continually improve them with a combination of business acquisitions and internal growth.

From the date of acquisitions, the contribution of the acquired businesses to revenues and income before
income taxes amounted to $12,520 and $167 negative, respectively.

If this acquisition had oecurred on February 1st 2016, management estimates that revenues and income before
recovery of income taxes of the acquired businesses would have been $112,060 and $625 negative respectively.

The transactions have been recorded under the acquisition method and the results of operations of the acquired
business have been included in the consolidated financial statements since the acquisition date. The goodwill is
mainly attributable to the workforce and the synergies expected from integrating the acquired entity into the
Corporation’s existing business.
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Per the Kenya Kazi Limited acquisition contract, the contingent consideration calculation is based on a series of
free cash flows that will be achieved by Kenya Kazi Limited up to January 3i, 2019. The fair value of the

contingent consideration was determined using forecasted free cash flows,

As of January 31, 2017, goodwill of $24,537 is attributable to International Protective Services CGU'’s.

Assets
Cash
Non-cash working capital

Property, plant and equipment

Goodwill
Intangible assets

Deferred income tax assets

Liabilities
Long-term debt

Deferred income tax liabilities

Net assets

Consideration
Cash

Contingent consideration — current

portion

Contingent consideration — non-current

portion

Balance of purchase price payable

Non-controlling interest

Total consideration

2017 2016
Other
Total Aegis acquisitions Total
$ $ $
4,101 34,485 409 34,894
4718 44,336 667 45,003
13,161 15,854 3,091 18,945
24,537 107,572 4,632 112,204
12,950 35,129 1,049 36,178
- 3,029 - 3,029
59,467 240,405 9,848 250,253
21,108 8,176 327 8,503
68 - 129 129
21,176 8,176 456 8,632
38,291 232,229 9,392 241,621
21,363 180,139 7417 187,556
- 33,899 - 33.89¢
11,960 18,191 - 18,191
3,625 - 1,875 1,975
1,343 - - -
38,291 232,229 9,392 241,621

Of the Goodwill and intangible assets acquired during the year, nil (2016 - $2,599) is deductible for tax

purposes,

Transaction eosts of $2,553 (2016 - $7.359) have been expensed in relation to businesses acquisitions.
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During the year, the Corporation completed the determination of the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired

from Aegis.
Aegis
pretiminary Finat
valuation Adjustment valuation
at January 31, during the at January 31,
2016 year 2047
Assets
Cash 34 485 - 34,485
Non-cash working capital 48,366 (4,030) 44,336
Praperty, plant and equipment 15,854 - 15,854
Goodwill 115,915 (8,343) 107,572
Intangible assets 35129 - 35129
Deferred income tax assets - 3,029 3,029
249749 (9,344) 240,405
Liabilities
Long-term debt 8,176 - 8,176
Deferred income tax liabilities 9,344 (9,344) -
17,520 - 8,176
Net assets
232,229 - 232,229
Consideration
Cash 180,138 - 180,139
Contingent consideration — current portion 33,899 - 33,899
Contingent consideration — non-current portion 18,191 - 18,191
Total consideration 232,229 - 232,229
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19 Employee benefits
a) Defined benefit pension plans

The Corporation has defined benefit pension plans for 1,468 of its employees (2016 — 1,556). The Corporation
makes contributions to the plans. The obligations of the defined benefit plans are based on the employee’s
length of service and salary.

The Corporation measures its acerued benefit obligations and the fair value of plan assets for accounting
purposes as at January 31, 2017. The most recent actuarial valuation of the pension plans for funding purposes
was as of January 1, 2016 and the next required valuation will be as of January 1, 2017.

Information about the Corporation’s defined benefit pension plans is as follows:

Employee benefits assets:

2017 2016

$ $

Fair value of plan assets 70,305 65,161
Accrued benefit obligation (67.817) (63,429)
Plan surpius — Employee benefit assets 2,488 1,732

The following table shows the composition of the underlying assets of the segregated funds in which the
corporation’s defined benefit pension plans invest in:

Plans assets comprise:

2017 2016
Equity securities 59.1% 58.9%
Debt securities 38.8% 38.9%
24% 2.2%

Money market fund

As at January 31, 2017, all investments of the plans are classified as Level 2 instruments as defined in note 21.
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Movement in the present value of the accrued benefit obligation for defined benefit plans:

2017 2016
3 $
Accrued benefit obligation — Beginning of year 63,42¢ 68,237
Current service cost 1,081 1,250
Interest cost 2,604 2,688
Benefits paid (2,084) (6,301)
Past service cost (including curtailment) - (1,392)
Actuarial loss (gain) arising from
Plan experience 978 92
Changes in demographic assumptions 1,085 -
Changes in financial assumptions 724 (1,145)
Accrued benefit obligation — End of year 67,817 63,429
Movement in the fair value of plan assets for defined benefit plans:
2017 2016
$ $
Fair value of plan assets — Beginning of year 65,161 67,739
Expected return on plan assets 2,043 (1,334)
Employer contributions 2,781 2,574
Administrative cost (271) (265)
Benefits paid (2,084) (6,301)
Interest income on plan assets 2,675 2,748
Fair value of plan assets — End of year 70,305 65,161
Expense recognized:
2017 2016
$ $
Current service cost 1,081 1,250
Interest cost (71) (60)
Past service cost (including curtailment) - (1,392)
Expected return on plan assets (2.043) 1,334
Administration cost 271 265
Actuarial loss (gain) on defined benefit obligation 2,787 (1,053)
2,025 344
Expense recognized in net income (loss) 1,281 63
Expense recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) 744 281
2,025 344
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Actuarial losses (gains) recognized in other comprehensive income (loss):

2017 2016
$ $
Cumulative actuarial loss in other accumulated comprehensive
income — Beginning of year 6,428 6,147
Recognized during the year 744 281
Cumulative actuarial loss in other accumulated comprehensive
income — End of year 7,172 6,428
The significant actuarial assumptions used (expressed as weighted average):
2017 2016
% %
Accrued benefit obligation
Discount rate 4.00 410
Future salary increase 2.50 275
Employee benefit expense
Discount rate 4.00 410
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 4.00 410
Future salary increases 2.50 275

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and mortality tables. The current

longevity underlying the value of the liabilities in the defined plans is 17.78 years.

The overall expected long-term rate of return is 4.00%. The expected long-term rate of return is based on the

portfolio as a whole and not on the sum of the returns on individual asset categories.

The Corporation expects approximately $2,092 in contributions to be paid to its defined benefit plans next year

in fiscal 2018,

Through the defined benefit plan, the Corporation is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which

are detailed below.

Asset volatility

The plans liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond yields; if the plan
assets underperform this yield, it will create an experience loss. The plans hold a proportion of equities, which
are expected to outperform corporate bonds in the long term while contributing to volatility and risk in the

short term.
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The Corporation believes that due to the long-term nature of the plans liabilities, the level of equity investments
is an appropriate element of the Corporation’s long-term strategy to manage the plans efficiently. The plans
assets are diversified, so the failure of an individual stock would not have a material impact on the plans assets
taken as a whole. The pension plans do not face a significant currency risk.

Changes in bond yields

A decrease in bond vields will increase the plans liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in
the value of the plans bond holdings.

Inflation risk

The henefits paid by one plan are partially indexed to inflation; this plan represents less than 20% of the total
defined benefit liabilities of both plans. The benefits of the other plan are not indexed to inflation. Also, future
benefits for some but, but not all, active members are based on future salaries.

Life expectancy

The main purpose of the plans obligations is to provide benefits towards its members over the duration of their
respective lifetimes. Increases in life expectancy will result in an increase in the plans liabilities.

Each sensitivity analysis disclosed in this note is based on changing one assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to cccur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be
correlated. When calculating the sensitivity analysis of the defined benefit obligations to variations in
significant actuarial assumptions, the same method has been applied as for calenlating the liability recognized
in the statement of financial position.

Sensibility analysis

2017 2016
$ $
Discount rate at 3.75% instead of 4.00% (2016 - 3.85% instead
of 4.10%) 2,974 2,817
Salary growth of 2.25% instead of 2.50% (2016 - 2.50% instead
of 2.75%) (358) (409}
Life expectancy ~ 90% of the mortality rates used for valuation 1,455 1,389
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b) Defined contribution plans

The Corporation has established defined contribution pension plans for certain of its unionized and
non-unionized employees in Canada and the United States, In addition, the Corperation also contributes to a
registered retirement savings plan for various employees. The pension expense for these plans is represented by
the Corporatien contribution, For the year ended January 31, 2017, the pension expense for these plans
amounted to $13,015 (2016 ~ $11,281) and was recorded in salaries and fringe benefits.

Income taxes

a) The income tax rate differs from the basic tax rate for the following reasons:

Income (Loss) before income taxes

Canadian statutory income tax rate

Income taxes calculated at statutory rate

Increase (decrease) resuiting from

Benefits arising from a financing structure

Non-Canadian applicable income tax rate difference

Unrealized exchange (gain) loss on translation of
long-term debt

Permanent differences and other

Change in statutory rate

2047 2016
$ $
74,415 (209,881)
26.90% 26.90%

20,018 (56,458)
(23,570) (19,937)
(5.826) (10,478)
(20,632) 24,874
12,037 (5,264)
(226) 171
(18,199) (67,092)
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b) Deferred income taxes represent the net tax effect of temporary differences between the consolidated
financial statements carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities. Significant components of
the Corporation’s deferred income tax assets (liabilities) as at January 31, 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

Property, plant Liabilities

and equipment and and other Loss

Net deferred income tax assets intangible asset; provisio; carryfomarg Totasj
As at January 31, 2015 (13,617) 43,898 156,899 187,180
Recovery of (provision for) deferred

income taxes 4,983 48,951 20,183 74117
Business acquisitions (7.641) - 10,541 2,900
Other comprehensive income - {26) - (26)
Effect of exchange rate {225) 6,305 11,940 18,020
As at January 31, 2016 ~{16,500) 99,128 199,563 282,191
As at January 31, 2016 (16,500) 99,128 199,563 282,191
Recovery of (provision for) deferred

income taxes (437) (17,074} 54,972 37.461
Business acquisitions (739) - 671 (68)
Other comprehensive income - 197 - 197
Effect of exchange rate 2,741 (5,638) (9,895) (12,792)
As at January 31, 2017 (14,935) 76,613 245,311 306,989

The Corporation has forecasted the taxable income for the next ten years. Based on those forecasts, the loss
carryforwards will be used before their expiry dates, which range from 2027 to 2037. Therefore, deferred
income tax assets have been recorded regarding those losses.

As at January 31, 2017, loss carryforwards not recognized in deferred income tax assets totalled $5,425.

During fiscal year ended January 31, 2016, the Corporation received a letter from the Canada Revenue Agency
pursuant to their review of certain transactions oceurred in the prior taxation year. The letter proposed to
disallow the amortization of deferred revenue for an amount of $87,227. During the fiscal year ended January
31, 2017, there was exchanges between the Corporation and the Canadian Revenue Agency and this matter was
brought before the Tax Court of Canada. As at January 31, 2017, deferred income tax assets included $23,220
related to the amortisation of deferred revenue, The Corporation is in total disagreement with the letter from
Canada Revenue Agency and management disputed this letter. Since management believes that it is more likely
than not that its position will be sustained, no reduction of the deferred income tax assets was recorded in the
financial statements.
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21 Financial instruments

Fair value estimation

The Corporation has estimated the fair value of its financial instruments based on current interest rates, market
value and current pricing of financial instruments with similar terms and conditions. Unless otherwise
indicated, the fair value of these financial instruments is considered to approximate their earrying value. The
fair values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, bank indebtedness, accounts payable and acerued
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts due to their relatively short maturities. The fair value of long-
term debt is based on observable market data and on the calculation of discounted cash flows. Discount rates
were determined based on current terms and conditions observed in the credit market.

The fair value hierarchy under which the Corporation’s financial instruments are valued is as follows:

Level 1 — quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted market prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and

Level 3 — unobservable inputs such as inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable

market data.

Financial liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities

2017
Quoted prices in
active market Significant
for identical observable inputs

Significant
unobservable

Financial assets
Derivative tinancial assets
Financial liabilities

Carrying amount assets {level 1) (level 2) inputs (level 3)
10,215 - 10,215 -

2016

Quoted prices in

active market Significant Significant
for identical observable inputs unobservable
Carrying amount  assets {level 1} {level 2) inputs (level 3)
49,184 - 45,184 -
6,728 - 6,728 -

Derivative financial liabilities
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Credit risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Corporation to significant credit risk consist principally of
cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, revenue to be billed and notes receivable.

The Corporation’s cash and cash equivalents are held with high credit quality financial institutions. Therefore,
the Corporation considers the risk of non-performance on those instruments to be remote.

The Corporation’s credit risk is principally attributable to its trade receivables and notes receivable. The
amounts presented in the consolidated statement of financial position are net of an allowance for doubtful
accounts, estimated by the Corporation’s management based, in part, on the age of the specific receivable
balance and the current and expected collection trends. A provision is established when the likelihood of
collecting the account has significantly diminished. The Corporation believes that the credit risk of accounts
receivable is limited.

The distribution of the Corporation’s customers and the business risk management procedures have the effect
of avoiding any concentration of credit risk. Generally, the Corporation does not require collateral or other
security from customers for trade receivables; however, credit is extended following an evaluation of
creditworthiness. In addition, the Corporation performs ongoing credit reviews of all its customers and
establishes an allowance for doubtful acecounts when accounts are determined to be uncollectible.

Interest rate risk

As at January 31, 2017, the Corporation’s interest rate risk is as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents Variable rate
Accounts receivable Non-interest bearing
Notes receivable Non-interest bearing
Bank indebtedness Variable rate
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities Non-interest bearing
Long-term debt Note 12

Based on long-term debt at variable rates as at January 31, 2017, the effect of a change of 100 basis points
would have been approximately $8,232 (2016 — $7,266).

The Corporation has embedded derivative financial instrument with a negative fair value as at January 31, 2017
of $5,679 (2016 — $9,013). This derivative is related to the interest rate floor on the Corporation’s US dollar
term loan and delayed draw facility. The change in fair value for the year resulted in a gain of $4,684 (2016 ~
$1,166) and was recorded in the consolidated statement of income (loss).

The Corporation minimizes its exposure to changes in interest rates in maintaining a significant porticn of
fixed-rate interest-bearing long-term debt, This is achieved by entering into interest rate swaps. As at
January 31, 2017, the fair value of interest rate swaps are negative by $2,818 (2016 — $6,728). The change in
fair value for the vear resulted in a gain of $3,910 (2016 — loss of$75) and was recorded in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (loss) since these interest rate swaps are designated as hedges of US dollar
and Canadian dollar term loan variable interest rate debts.
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The Corporation's interest rate swaps are as follows:

Coverage period
Less than 1 year

110 2 years
2to 3 years

Foreign exchange risk

Average
BA’s rate

1.78%
1.84%
1.94%

Notional
contract
amount
$
383,403
247,239
158,635

The Corporation has operating activities cutside Canada, namely in the United States, the Middle East, Europe
and North Africa mostly, through its wholly owned subsidiaries. It is therefore exposed to foreign exchange rate
risk on the US dollar, the Eurc and the British pound in the net investment in its foreign operations.

During the year ended January 31, 2017, if the US dollar had strengthened on average by $0.01 in comparison
to the Canadian dollar, all other variables remaining constant, the impact on income before finance costs and
income taxes for the year would have been approximately $7,118 (2016 — $6,160) lower and comprehensive

income would have been approximatively $4,363 (2016 - $3,942) lower.

The Corporation’s consolidated statement of financial position contains balances of cash and cash equivalents,
accounts receivable, accounts payable and acerued liabilities, current portion of long-term debt and leng-term
debt, in currencies other than functional currency of the corporation and its subsidiaries. Accordingly, the

Corporation is exposed to foreign exchange risk.

The balances in currencies are as follows;

2017 2016

uUsb EUR GBP AUD USD EUR GBP AUD
Cash and cash equivalents 6,703 574 38 1,228 2,071 167 900 1,795
Accounts Receivable 11,742 - - - 21,545 - - -
Total assets 18,445 574 36 1,228 23,616 167 900 1,795
Canadian dollar equivalent 24,035 807 60 1,213 33,252 254 1,797 1,790
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,067 - - - 3,018 - - -
Current portion of long-term debt 8,105 - - - 9,250 - . -
Long-term debt 1,277,985 - - - 1,269,194 - - -
Total liabilities 1,289,157 - - - 1,281,462 - - -
Canadian dollar equivalent 1,679,772 - - - 1,793,870 - - -

During the year, the Corporation sold its cross currency swap. As a result, the Corporation received $26,972 for

this settlement.
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Forward swaps totalled US$120,000 (2016 - US$120,000). One forward swap of US$100,000 at an exchange
rate of 1,3571 (US$:CA$) with a maturity date on November 15, 2017 and one forward swap of US$20,000 at an
exchange rate of 1.3738 (US$:CA$) with a maturity date on November 8, 2018. As at January 31, 2017, the fair
value of foreign derivative swaps are negative by $7,397 (2016 - positive by $49,184). The change in fair value
for the year resulted in a loss of $29,609 (2016 — gain of $33,778} and was recorded in the condensed
consolidated statement of income (loss).

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Corporation will not be able to meet its obligations as they become due or can
only do so at excessive cost. The Corporation manages this risk by maintaining detailed cash flows and long-
term operating and strategic plans, The contractual cash flows include the carrying value amount plus interest

using the current rate.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at January 31, 2017:

Fair Carrying Contractual Less than 1t0 3 4to5 More than
value amount cash flow 1 year years years 5 years
$ $ $ $ $ $ $
Financial liabilities

Bank indebtedness 5,212 5,212 5,212 5,212 - - -

Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities 341,881 341,881 341,881 341,881 - - -
Derivative instruments 10,215 10,215 10,215 8,061 2,154 - -
Long-term debt 1,881,051 1,858 237 2,278,787 145137 247546 1,882 160 3,944
2,238,359 2215545 2,636,095 500,291 249,700 1,882,160 3,944

The following table details the maturities of the financial liabilities and financial assets as at January 31, 2016:

Fair Carrying Contractual Less than 1to3 4toc5 More than
value amount cash flov; 1 yea; years years § years
$
Financial liabilities

Bank indebtedness 5593 - 5,593 5,583 5,593 - - -

Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities 343,382 343,382 343,382 343,382 - - -
Derivative instrumenis 6,728 6,728 6,728 4,346 2475 {93} -
Long-term debt 1,876,644 _ 1,961,527 2,504,864 160,688 380,811 1,300,993 662,372

2,232.347 2317230 2 860,567 514,008 383,286 1,300,900 662,372

Financial assets
Derivative instruments 49.184 49 184 49 184 2,306 46,878 - -
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22 Contingencies

23

In the normal course of business, the Corporation is involved in various legal proceedings, the outcomes of
which cannot be determined at this time, and, accordingly, no provision has been recorded. The Corporation
believes that the resolution of these proceedings will not have a material favourable or unfavourable effect on its
financial position or results of operations.

Related party disclosures

a)

Key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the business activities of the Corporation and includes all of its directors along
with certain executives. Key management personnel participate in the stock option plan. The remuneration

to key management personnel, includes the following:

Director’'s fees

Salaries

Benefits

Stock-based compensation

2017 2016
$ $

429 710
6,101 3,579
127 119
5575 -
12,232 4,408
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b) Related party transactions

The following provides the transaction amount by nature of the related party relationship*:

Nature of transaction
Professional fees included in cther expenses
Professional fees included in deferred financing costs

* Nature of the related party relationship — entities related by virtue of
key management persannel exercising significant influence or
contro! over the entities’ financial and operating policies.

Financial positions
Receivable from parent company

24 Commitments

2017 2016
$ $
1,250 785
55 168
1,305 893
6,200 2,598
6,200 2,588

The Corporation entered into operating leases consisting mainly of real estate expiring on various dates through
November 2041 which call for total lease payments of $204,412. Minimum lease payments for the upcoming

years are as follows:

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023 to 2041

$

52,585
46,214
38,958
30,275
25,769

100,611
294,412
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